
TOWN OF MOUNT GILEAD  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA 

110 West Allenton Street, Mount Gilead, North Carolina, 27306 

February 4, 2025 

 
 

The Mount Gilead Board of Commissioners will meet on Tuesday, February 4, 2025, at 7:00 p.m. at 

the Mount Gilead Fire Department, 106 East Allenton St, Mt Gilead, NC 27306, for the regular 

monthly business meeting.  

 

 

ITEM I. CALL TO ORDER                                           (Mayor Morley) 

  MOMENT OF SILENCE 

   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    

 

 

ITEM II. CONSENT AGENDA                                         (Action) 

A. Adoption of the Agenda 

B. Adoption of January 21, 2025 Board of Commissioner Meeting Minutes 

C. Staff Reports 

 

    

ITEM III.  PUBLIC COMMENT 

A.  Reading of the Rules for Public Comment          (Mayor Morley) 

  

 

ITEM IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Consider Budget Amendment for Fire Department 

Water Line Replacement Project 

B. Approval of Audit Response Letter 

C. Consider Date for Town Board Budget Planning Session 

D. Information – Consider Attendance at NC League Of Municipalities  

CityVision Conference, April 29 – May 1, 2025   

 

 

ITEM VII.  COMMITTEE REPORTS   

A. Community  Garden                                                                            (Mary Poplin) 

  

   

ITEM VIII. MANAGER REPORT                                           (Michael Ferris) 

 

 

ITEM IX. MAYOR AND COMMISSIONERS REPORT                                 (Information) 

 

 

ITEM XI. CLOSED SESSION  

Adjourn to a Closed Session pursuant to NCGS143-318.11(a) (5) & (6) to discuss 

Real Estate and Personnel 

    

  

ITEM XI. ADJOURNMENT                           (Action) 



TOWN OF MOUNT GILEAD  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MEETING MINUTES 

110 West Allenton Street, Mount Gilead, North Carolina, 27306 

January 21, 2025 

 
 

 

The Mount Gilead Board of Commissioners will met on Tuesday, January 21, 2025, at 7:00 p.m. at the Mount Gilead Fire 

Department, 106 East Allenton St, Mt Gilead, NC 27306, for the regular monthly business meeting.  Present Mayor 

Sheldon P. Morley, Mayor Pro Tem Tim McAuley, Commissioner Mary Lucas, Commissioner Vera Richardson, Interim 

Town Manager Michael Ferris, Police Chief Talmadge LeGrand, Public Works Director James Wahoo McCormick, and 

Town Clerk Lessie D. Jackson.  Conference called in Commissioner Paula Covington, 

 

 

ITEM I.  CALL TO ORDER                  (Mayor Morley) 

Mayor Pro Tem Tim McAuley called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. with a moment of silence and     

the Pledge of Allegiance. 

       

ITEM II. CONSENT AGENDA                          (Action) 

A. Adoption of the Agenda 

B. Adoption of December  

C. Staff Reports 

D. Mohawk Industrial Permit 

❖ Commissioner Richardson made a motion to adopt the consent agenda amendment to add the 

swearing in of Michael W. Sward, and a presentation of a certificate for Austen B. Morton.  

Commissioner Lucas seconded the motion.  The motion carried. 

     

ITEM III.  PUBLIC COMMENT 

Reading of the Rules for Public Comment                (Town Manager Michael Ferris) 

❖ Patricia Laracuente-305 Stanback St.-Mrs. Laracuente came before the Board to speak on the 

violence in our community, and gang issues.  Mrs. Laracuente just had a lot to say about issue 

that she see within the town. 

  

ITEM IV.  OLD BUSINESS  

A. Proposed Social District Public Hearing             (Public Hearing) 

➢ Commission Richardson made the motion to open up the floor for a hearing on the proposed 

social district.  Mayor Pro Tem McAuley seconded the motion.  The motion carried. 

 Sue Haithcock-100 Highland Ave.-Came before the Board to stress her concerns 

about having a social district.   

 Alane W. Brown-201 S. Wadesboro Blvd.-Came before the Board to give reasons 

why she is for the social district. 

 Patricia Laracuente-305 Stanback St.-Came before the Board to give reasons why she 

believe we do not need a social district. 

 Aaron Byrd-303 E. Allenton St.-Spoke to the Board as to why he is in favor of having 

a social district. 

 Mary Poplin-201 S. Main St. - Spoke in favor of the social district. 

 Rebecca Neubauer-110 N. Main St.-Spoke in favor of the social district. 

 Michelle Haywood-409 Stanback St.-Spoke against social district. 

 Darcia Alt-108 W. Allenton St.-Spoke in favor of the social district. 

 Jack Jordan-117 E. Allenton St.-Spoke in favor of the social district. 

 Brittney-104 N. Main St.-Spoke in favor of the social district. 

 ***Commissioner Richardson made a motion to close the public hearing and go 

back into the regular meeting.  Mayor Pro Tem McAuley seconded the motion.  The 

motion carried. 

B. Proposed Social District                 (Action) 

*The floor was open for the Board to have discussing.  Each Board member gave their opinion 

on how they feel the social district would improve the foot traffic in downtown, and one 

commissioner gave the opinion of the citizens.   



➢ ***Mayor Pro Tem McAuley made a motion to approve the proposed social district ordinance.  

Commissioner Richardson seconded the motion.  The motion carried. 3-Yes and 1-No. 

 

ITEM V. NEW BUSINESS  

A. Presentation from Auditor 

Deneal Bennett of J.B. Watson & Company review the audit findings with the Board.  The Board 

had no questions for Mrs. Bennett. 

➢ ***Commissioner Richardson made a motion to approve the audit report.  Commissioner 

Covington seconded the motion.  The Motion Carried. 

 

B. Offer to Purchase Property               (Action) 

Interim Town Manager informed the Board of an offer made to purchase property from the town 

from Mr. Aaron Byrd.  Mr. Byrd is offer to purchase the parcel, which is currently undeveloped and 

served with no sewer, but would require a sewer extension to serve the lot.  He is offering the town 

$2,000 for the lot.  The location map is from the county GIS system and indicates an assigned tax 

value of $8,640.   After discussion with the Board, Commissioner Richardson made a motion to 

table the discussion until the Board Retreat.  Commissioner Lucas seconded the motion.  The 

motion carried. 

 

C. Discussion of Water Leak at Fire Station 

Interim Town Manager Michael Ferris informed the Board of a water leak in the Fire Department 

service line that needs immediate attention.  Mr. Ferris went over the two options with the Board. 

After in depth discussion with the Board about the project and the cost.  Mayor Pro Tem McAuley 

made a motion to go with option #2 for the water line replacement.  Commissioner Lucas seconded 

the motion.  The motion carried. 

 

D. Mt. Gilead Fire Department Annual Award Dinner 

***Saturday January 25, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. 

 Location:  Tillery Traditions Club House-214 Tradition Dr. 

 

ITEM VI.  COMMITTEE REPORTS   

A. Community Garden                                                                                                        

Mary Poplin came before the Board to give an update on what is going on new at the community 

garden. 

     

ITEM VII. MANAGER REPORT                                                  

  Interim Manager Michael Ferris thank the Board for giving him the opportunity to for the  

  town an he updated the Board on the different projects employees of the town is working on. 

 

ITEM VII. MAYOR AND COMMISSIONERS REPORT                        

*Mayor Poplin gave his report on continued work with the Montgomery County Partnership for 

Children.  He has also joined a group call the C.O.R.E Program, ways to get tourism into Mt. Gilead.  

At the end he commit on some of the discussion from tonight meeting. 

 

*Commissioner Covington request the dates for the retreat as soon as possible. 

 

*Mayor Pro Tem made a motion to go into closed session.  Commissioner Lucas seconded the motion.  

The motion carried. 

 

*Mayor Pro Tem made a motion to come out of closed session and go back into regular session.  

Commissioner Richardson seconded the motion.  The motion carried. 
 

ITEM IX. CLOSED SESSION pursuant to NC GS 143-33c to discuss Personnel 

     

ITEM X. ADJOURNMENT 

Commissioner Lucas made a motion to adjourn.  Commissioner Richardson seconded the motion.  

The motion carried.  

 

 

      ____________________________                                                              _________________________________  

          Sheldon Poplin, Mayor                                                                                    Lessie D. Jackson, Town Clerk 

        



WWTP JANUARY 2025 MONTHLY REPORT 
  
  
December 2024 Toxicity performed and passed. 
  
December 2024 eDMR/monthly report successfully submitted. 
  
All required testing/analysis completed. 
  
UV System: LKC Services is trying to resolve issues and currently waiting for VEOLIA service technician 
response. Possibly issues with new lamps. 
  
Annual service completed on headwork’s press. 
 





MEMORANDUM  

To:             Michael Ferris     

                  Town Manager   

From:        Talmedge LeGrand  

Chief of Police      

Date:  January 2025 

Subject:  Mount Gilead Police Department Monthly Report for January 2025 

 

The month of January has been such a rewarding month.  We were able to hire and full-time 

employee. We are still looking to add more part-time employees to our department. With 

the suspected numbers of growth for our town, it is imperative that we continue to add and 

to improve our Police Officers with training and new technology. At the Police Department 

we were able to give out a special award for training that has been completed.  

This month Detective Trevor Wood was one of many speakers at the Highland Community 

Center for a Wellness Spa Day, hosted by Better Together Montgomery. At the event, their 

focus was about your wellness in body, in mind and also the wellness of our community as a 



whole. Because there is a need to build a brighter and stronger relationship with our 

community.  

 

 

          

               

           

         

                

Administration and Patrol                

                            

• Officers attended the scheduled grand jury session.                 

• Officers are continuing to check business doors each night.                               

• Officers conducted various traffic stops.                

• Officers continue to take annual in-service training.                

• Ranking officers continue to fill in shifts for officers as needed shift schedule (sickness, training, 

vacancy etc.).                

• Entered IBR (monthly crime report) into the state database for crime statistics.         

• Continued entry of SBI Traffic Stop Reports.                

• Routinely reviewed body camera videos.                      

• Continued escorts for businesses as they close at night.                

• Department vehicles serviced with oil changes and tire rotations.                

                            



CFS By Department - Select Department By Date
For MT GILEAD POLICE DEPT 01/01/2025 00:00 - 01/30/2025 23:59

Montgomery County Communications
199 South Liberty St Troy , NC 27371

MT GILEAD POLICE DEPT Count Percent
911 HANG UP 3 3.23%

ALARM (NOT FIRE) COMMERCIAL 8 8.60%

ALARM (NOT FIRE) RESIDENTIAL 1 1.08%

ANIMAL CALL (NOT ATTACKS) 1 1.08%

ARMED PERSON 1 1.08%

ASSIST MOTORIST 4 4.30%

ATTEMPT TO LOCATE 3 3.23%

CHEST PAIN 1 1.08%

CIVIL DISTURBANCE 1 1.08%

COMMUNICATING THREATS 1 1.08%

DOMESTIC 5 5.38%

ELECTROCUTION - LIGHTNING 1 1.08%

ESCORT 4 4.30%

FIGHT 1 1.08%

FOLLOWUP INVESTIGATION 1 1.08%

INFORMATION 5 5.38%

INMATE-JUV-TX-ESCORT 1 1.08%

JUVENILE(s) 1 1.08%

MISSING/LOST PERSON 1 1.08%

MUTUAL AID - ASSIST OUTSIDE AGENCY 1 1.08%

OVERDOSE - POISONING (INGESTION) 1 1.08%

PROPERTY (Found-Lost-Seized-Recoverd) 1 1.08%

PROWLER 5 5.38%

SERVE PAPER 2 2.15%

SHOTS FIRED 2 2.15%

SPECIAL ASSIGNMENT 1 1.08%

STRUCTURE FIRE 1 1.08%

SUSPICIOUS PERSON/VEH/ACTIVITY 9 9.68%

TRAFFIC ACCIDENTS (PD) 1 1.08%

TRAFFIC STOP 19 20.43%

TRESPASSING 1 1.08%

UNAUTHORIZED USE 1 1.08%

UNKNOWN PROBLEM (MAN DOWN) 1 1.08%

VANDALISM 1 1.08%

VEHICLE FIRE 1 1.08%

WANTED PERSON 1 1.08%

93Total Records

Total Records For MT GILEAD POLICE DEPT 100.00%93 Group/Total

Page Of1 1CAD Report 5 01/31/2025 08:42



Department OCA With Unit Times Report
01/01/2025 00:00 - 01/30/2025 23:59

Montgomery County Communications
199 South Liberty St Troy , NC 27371

OCA # | CFS # Call Type Location Caller User Disposition OCA UnitPriority
MT GILEAD POLICE DEPT

Unit CFS Received Dispatch Enroute Arrive Left Arrive 2nd Clear CFS Closed

01-25-001 | 202500234 TRAFFIC STOP JULIUS CHAMBERS AVE \ N PINE ST | 425
JULIUS CHAMBERS AVE INT, MT GILEAD

730 RATKINSON SERVED-POSTED-
PROCESSED

Arrive 2nd Loc|NoteLeft Loc|Note

703 01/03/2025 18:44:58 18:54:26 18:54:26 18:54:26 18:54:26 19:13:29 19:13:29 01/03/2025
20:32:28

730 01/03/2025 18:44:58 18:45:59 18:45:59 18:45:59 19:13:23 20:32:28 20:32:28 01/03/2025
20:32:28

Unit CFS Received Dispatch Enroute Arrive Left Arrive 2nd Clear CFS Closed

01-25-002 | 202500314 UNKNOWN PROBLEM
(MAN DOWN)

331 NORTHVIEW RD, MT GILEAD VERIZON SSIMPSON REPORT TAKEN

Arrive 2nd Loc|NoteLeft Loc|Note

Medium

703 01/04/2025 20:14:49 20:18:06 20:19:08 20:21:08 20:21:08 21:16:41 21:16:41 01/04/2025
21:16:42

730 01/04/2025 20:14:49 20:19:49 20:19:49 20:21:10 20:21:10 21:16:41 21:16:41 01/04/2025
21:16:42

Unit CFS Received Dispatch Enroute Arrive Left Arrive 2nd Clear CFS Closed

01-25-003 | 202500990 VANDALISM ROVER SHOP | 510 JULIUS CHAMBERS
AVE, MT GILEAD

ROVER SHOP RATKINSON REPORT TAKEN

Arrive 2nd Loc|NoteLeft Loc|Note

703 01/13/2025 19:54:34 19:55:39 19:55:42 20:13:53 20:13:53 20:50:20 20:50:20 01/13/2025
20:50:20

Unit CFS Received Dispatch Enroute Arrive Left Arrive 2nd Clear CFS Closed

01-25-004 | 202501172 MUTUAL AID - ASSIST
OUTSIDE AGENCY

RICHARDSON RD \ HYDRO RD | 100
RICHARDSON RD BEGIN, MT GILEAD

705 TKAUFMAN REPORT TAKEN

Arrive 2nd Loc|NoteLeft Loc|Note

705 01/16/2025 07:41:43 07:42:05 07:42:05 07:42:05 07:42:05 07:42:22 07:42:22 01/16/2025
07:42:22

Unit CFS Received Dispatch Enroute Arrive Left Arrive 2nd Clear CFS Closed

01-25-005 | 202501322 DOMESTIC 125 WASHINGTON PARK RD, MT GILEAD DERRICK
LEONARD

RATKINSON CLEAR-10-24

Arrive 2nd Loc|NoteLeft Loc|Note

703 01/17/2025 21:50:47 21:53:02 21:53:06 21:54:43 21:54:43 22:00:13 22:00:13 01/17/2025
22:00:13

Page Of1 2CAD Report 267 01/31/2025 08:43



OCA # | CFS # Call Type Location Caller User Disposition OCA UnitPriority
MT GILEAD POLICE DEPT

Unit CFS Received Dispatch Enroute Arrive Left Arrive 2nd Clear CFS Closed

01-25-006 | 202501620 MISSING/LOST PERSON THE GILEAD | 110 ROOSEVELT AVE, MT
GILEAD

702 JWHITAKER CLEAR-10-24

Arrive 2nd Loc|NoteLeft Loc|Note

702 01/21/2025 23:03:12 23:03:28 23:03:28 23:03:28 23:03:28 23:11:26 23:11:26 01/21/2025
23:11:27

Unit CFS Received Dispatch Enroute Arrive Left Arrive 2nd Clear CFS Closed

01-25-007 | 202501950 STRUCTURE FIRE CHIPS | 302 JULIUS CHAMBERS AVE, MT
GILEAD

VERIZON HMATTHEWS CLEAR-10-24

Arrive 2nd Loc|NoteLeft Loc|Note

High

705 01/26/2025 14:45:44 14:46:57 14:46:57 14:47:50 14:47:50 15:16:26 15:16:26 01/26/2025
15:16:26

Unit CFS Received Dispatch Enroute Arrive Left Arrive 2nd Clear CFS Closed

01-25-008 | 202502222 TRAFFIC ACCIDENTS
(PD)

W ALLENTON ST \ N MAIN ST | 100 W
ALLENTON ST BEGIN, MT GILEAD

VERIZON JWHITAKER CLEAR-10-24

Arrive 2nd Loc|NoteLeft Loc|Note

702 01/29/2025 18:07:32 18:08:36 18:08:36 18:13:50 18:13:50 18:42:50 18:42:50 01/29/2025
18:42:50

8Group Total:

Page Of2 2CAD Report 267 01/31/2025 08:43



CFS Report - By Dept/Date With Notes
MT GILEAD POLICE DEPT

01/01/2025 - 01/30/2025

Montgomery County Communications
199 South Liberty St Troy , NC 27371

202500003 FOOD KING MT GILEAD | 112 S
MAIN ST, MT GILEAD

ALARM (NOT FIRE)
COMMERCIAL

01/01/2025
00:16:50

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

703 Init St:

202500045 524 PARKERTOWN RD, MT GILEAD UNAUTHORIZED USE01/01/2025
11:54:40

WARRANTS ADVISED

Units:

Notes:

705 baby momma look veh going to wadesboro gray dodge journeyInit St:

202500087 R&R SMOKE & VAPE | 211 N MAIN
ST, MT GILEAD

ALARM (NOT FIRE)
COMMERCIAL

01/01/2025
21:07:41

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

702 front door zone 1, no contactInit St:

702 out with employee
JWHITAKER 01/01/2025 21:11:20  E,F,L,R,O

202500094 102 W SECOND AVE, MT GILEAD SUSPICIOUS
PERSON/VEH/ACTIVITY

01/01/2025
23:22:28

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

702 SOMEONE DIGGING AT HER WINDOWS, & WANTS TO
SPEAK TO SOMEONE

Init St:

202500095 C'S - FOOD CENTER | 101 JULIUS
CHAMBERS AVE, MT GILEAD

SUSPICIOUS
PERSON/VEH/ACTIVITY

01/01/2025
23:28:49

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

702 watched subj walk in with mask on his faceInit St:

202500100 102 W SECOND AVE, MT GILEAD SUSPICIOUS
PERSON/VEH/ACTIVITY

01/02/2025
03:02:50

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

702 WANTS AN OFFICER TO JUST RIDE THRUInit St:

202500106 MCRAE INDUSTRIES INC | 400 N
MAIN ST, MT GILEAD

ALARM (NOT FIRE)
COMMERCIAL

01/02/2025
07:10:36

CANCELED-10-22

Units:

Notes:

705 PERIMETER BURG ALARM - ZONE 7Init St:

KEY HOLDER BRYAN TILLEY 910.571.2724
BSALAZAR 01/02/2025 07:11:01  E,F,L,R,O

CANCELED-10-22 - 10-22 PER ALARM
OPERATOR 7097

BSALAZAR 01/02/2025 07:12:47  E,F,L,R,O

202500213 103 S MAIN ST, MT GILEAD SERVE PAPER01/03/2025
13:41:00

SERVED-POSTED-
PROCESSED

Units:

Notes:

730 Init St:

SERVED-POSTED-PROCESSED - posted
JGREENE 01/03/2025 13:47:51  E,F,L,R,O

202500219 NC HWY 109 S \ MASK RD TRAFFIC STOP01/03/2025
15:10:18

CITATION(S) ISSUED

Units: 730 Init St:

CFS # Date/Time Location Call Type Disposition

Page Of1 13CAD Report 7 01/31/2025 08:42



Notes:

202500221 RANCE LN \ S WADESBORO BLVD TRAFFIC STOP01/03/2025
15:25:03

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

730 Init St:

202500234 JULIUS CHAMBERS AVE \ N PINE
ST

TRAFFIC STOP01/03/2025
18:45:59

SERVED-POSTED-
PROCESSED

Units:

Notes:

703, 730 GRN VANInit St:

ROBERTO LEE MCINTYRE
08/03/1976
23CR308073-830
North Carolina Order For Arrest
STANLY
MISDEMEANOR LARCENY
Unserved

RATKINSON 01/03/2025 18:51:17  E,F,L,R,O

MAG NOTIFIED
RATKINSON 01/03/2025 19:18:24  E,F,L,R,O

202500248 W ALLENTON ST \ NORTHVIEW RD TRAFFIC STOP01/03/2025
22:03:18

CITATION(S) ISSUED

Units:

Notes:

730 Init St:

202500255 W ALLENTON ST \ N MAIN ST TRAFFIC STOP01/03/2025
23:04:34

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

730 Init St:

202500281 BURGER SHACK | 100 S
WADESBORO BLVD, MT GILEAD

TRAFFIC STOP01/04/2025
14:26:32

CITATION(S) ISSUED

Units:

Notes:

730 Init St:

202500288 403 S CEDAR ST, MT GILEAD 911 HANG UP01/04/2025
15:15:11

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

704 called back and hung up....stayed on the line and they kept
hanging up  sent LEO

Init St:

CLEAR-10-24 - accidentally dialed
JGREENE 01/04/2025 15:20:17  E,F,L,R,O

202500291 N MAIN ST \ PLEASANT VALLEY RD TRAFFIC STOP01/04/2025
15:40:49

CITATION(S) ISSUED

Units:

Notes:

730 Init St:

202500293 N SCHOOL ST \ W SECOND AVE TRAFFIC STOP01/04/2025
15:58:48

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

730 Init St:

202500295 N MAIN ST \ PLEASANT VALLEY RD TRAFFIC STOP01/04/2025
16:15:01

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

730 Init St:

202500296 N MAIN ST \ S WADESBORO BLVD TRAFFIC STOP01/04/2025
16:43:16

CLEAR-10-24

CFS # Date/Time Location Call Type Disposition

Page Of2 13CAD Report 7 01/31/2025 08:42



Units:

Notes:

730 Init St:

202500299 W ALLENTON ST \ MASKE RD TRAFFIC STOP01/04/2025
16:59:55

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

730 Init St:

202500304 524 PARKERTOWN RD, MT GILEAD 911 HANG UP01/04/2025
18:40:49

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

703 BUSY SIGNAL ON BOTH CB ATTEMPTSInit St:

703 REQ EMS, SUBJ HAVING HEART ISSUES
SSIMPSON 01/04/2025 18:43:18  E,F,L,R,O

202500314 331 NORTHVIEW RD, MT GILEAD UNKNOWN PROBLEM (MAN
DOWN)

01/04/2025
20:17:44

REPORT TAKEN

Units:

Notes:

703, 730 CLR IS HYSTERICAL
ADV HER FACE IS BUSTED AND SAID SHE DIALED THE
WRONG NUMBER

Init St:

CFS # 202500314 has been cancelled in emergency dispatch software. 1. Caller hung up
SSIMPSON 01/04/2025 20:18:20  E

TRIED CALLING BACK WITH NO ANSWER
SSIMPSON 01/04/2025 20:21:19  E,F,L,R,O

703 REQ  OC DSS CONTACT HIM
RATKINSON 01/04/2025 20:52:06  E,F,L,R,O

703 ADV JESSICA CASSWELLS  WAS 10-56 ..BROTHER  IS 10-17  FOR THE KIDS
RATKINSON 01/04/2025 21:19:55  E,F,L,R,O

202500400 125 WASHINGTON PARK RD, MT
GILEAD

911 HANG UP01/06/2025
12:05:39

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

705 911 ONLYInit St:

CLEAR-10-24 - 705 ADV ACCIDENTAL.
BSALAZAR 01/06/2025 12:23:34  E,F,L,R,O

202500410 500 N MAIN ST, MT GILEAD OVERDOSE - POISONING
(INGESTION)

01/06/2025
12:49:30

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

705 35 Y/O M POSSIBLY EXPERIENCING POISONING.Init St:

35-year-old, Male, Conscious, Breathing.
BSALAZAR 01/06/2025 12:50:16  E

PATIENT IS A M SUBJ WEARING A RED JACKET. M IS BEING FOLLOWED BY A FEMALE SUBJ WHO IS WEARING A GRAY
HOODIE WITH BLACK AND GRAY PANTS.

BSALAZAR 01/06/2025 12:52:31  E,F,L,R,O

35-year-old, Male, Conscious, Breathing.
Chief Complaint: Overdose / Poisoning (Ingestion)
Dispatch Level: 23C07
Suffix: V
Response: Charlie
CADCode: 23C07V

BSALAZAR 01/06/2025 12:52:50  E

705 ADV SCENE SECURE
BSALAZAR 01/06/2025 12:56:29  E,F,L,R,O

705 ADV PATIENT IS COMPLAINING OF CHEST PAIN AND PATIENT IS NOT EXPERIENCING A OVERDOSE.
BSALAZAR 01/06/2025 12:56:51  E,F,L,R,O

202500415 MCRAE INDUSTRIES INC | 400 N
MAIN ST, MT GILEAD

ALARM (NOT FIRE)
COMMERCIAL

01/06/2025
13:59:04

CLEAR-10-24

Units: 705 PHOTO ELECTRIC BEAM MOWER SHED.Init St:

CFS # Date/Time Location Call Type Disposition

Page Of3 13CAD Report 7 01/31/2025 08:42



Notes:
KEY HOLDER BRYAN TILLEY 910.571.2724
BSALAZAR 01/06/2025 13:59:04  E,F,L,R,O

CLEAR-10-24 - ACCIDENTAL.
BSALAZAR 01/06/2025 14:14:53  E,F,L,R,O

202500436 125 WASHINGTON PARK RD, MT
GILEAD

JUVENILE(s)01/06/2025
19:32:11

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

702 has a thief living with her, adv its her 7yo son, wants him
arrested and locked up, adv he stole one of her old phones out
of her veh

Init St:

202500496 107 CIRCLE DR, MT GILEAD ASSIST MOTORIST01/07/2025
13:23:09

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

705 10-36 SIGNAL 1Init St:

202500528 W ALLENTON ST \ CIRCLE DR TRAFFIC STOP01/07/2025
21:50:06

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

702 Init St:

202500572 MT GILEAD ELEMENTARY | 102 S
SCHOOL ST, MT GILEAD

ESCORT01/08/2025
13:17:14

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

701 Init St:

NURSE AND GUIDANCE COUNSELOR CAME WITH 701
ESLAGLE 01/08/2025 13:27:28  E,F,L,R,O

202500581 275 WASHINGTON PARK RD, MT
GILEAD

ANIMAL CALL (NOT ATTACKS)01/08/2025
16:06:13

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

704 animal call loose and viciousInit St:

AC1 ADV DOG IS NOT AGGRESSIVE, ADV THE CLR'S KEEP FEEDING SAME. ADV HE WOULD RIDE OUT THERE AFTER HE
FINISHES UP WITH A CALL HE IS ON

SSIMPSON 01/08/2025 16:09:24  E,F,L,R,O

ac2 made contact with owner and they are going to get dog now
TKAUFMAN 01/08/2025 16:19:08  E,F,L,R,O

AC1 SEARCHING FOR INJURED DOG ON HAYWOOD
SSIMPSON 01/08/2025 16:23:23  E,F,L,R,O

202500607 102 W SECOND AVE, MT GILEAD PROWLER01/09/2025
03:05:24

DID NOT RESPOND

Units:

Notes:

703 SOMEONE WALKING OUTSIDEInit St:

202500616 MCRAE INDUSTRIES INC | 400 N
MAIN ST, MT GILEAD

ALARM (NOT FIRE)
COMMERCIAL

01/09/2025
08:02:58

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

704 PERMITER BURGLARY ZONE 7 NO 10-14Init St:

202500661 108 W SECOND AVE, MT GILEAD TRESPASSING01/09/2025
18:51:23

CIVIL ACTION ADVISED

Units:

Notes:

703 WENT TO CHECK APT, SOMEONE IS IN HOME THAT IS NOT
SUPPOSE TO BE THERE.. ADV HE JUST GOT THE PLACE,
AND NO ONE IS SUPPOSE TO BE THERE, ADV DOORS ARE
LOCKED AND LIGHTS ARE ON INSIDE

Init St:

CLEAR-10-24 - CLR LEFT SCENE, LIGHTS ARE NOT ON AND DOORS ARE LOCKED
SSIMPSON 01/09/2025 18:57:44  E,F,L,R,O

CFS # Date/Time Location Call Type Disposition

Page Of4 13CAD Report 7 01/31/2025 08:42



202500691 MCRAE INDUSTRIES INC | 400 N
MAIN ST, MT GILEAD

ALARM (NOT FIRE)
COMMERCIAL

01/10/2025
06:18:10

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

705 PERIMETER ZONE 7.Init St:

KEY HOLDER BRIAN TILLEY 910.571.2724
BSALAZAR 01/10/2025 06:18:12  E,F,L,R,O

CLEAR-10-24 - 705 ADV ACCIDENTAL.
BSALAZAR 01/10/2025 06:24:00  E,F,L,R,O

202500757 CHIPS | 302 JULIUS CHAMBERS
AVE, MT GILEAD

ESCORT01/10/2025
22:22:15

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

702 wants escort to vehInit St:

202500816 174 MASKE RD, MT GILEAD INFORMATION01/11/2025
19:42:57

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

702 SON BRADLEY DUNN IS AT HER HOME & WANTS HIM
REMOVED, WHILE ON THE PHONE WITH TC SON LEFT
UNKNOWN DESCRIPTION OF VEH OR CLOTHING CLLR
WOULD NOT ADV, REQ A 10-21

Init St:

SENT NAM & PS# TO 702
JHENLEY 01/11/2025 19:45:46  E,F,L,R,O

unable to reach by ps
JWHITAKER 01/11/2025 20:01:22  E,F,L,R,O

202500875 403 S WADESBORO BLVD, MT
GILEAD

ASSIST MOTORIST01/12/2025
14:09:49

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

705 10-36 S1. BLUE KIA OPTIMAInit St:

202500890 100 NORTHVIEW RD, MT GILEAD SHOTS FIRED01/12/2025
17:04:44

UNABLE TO LOCATE-
CONTACT-AREA
CHECKED

Units:

Notes:

705 SHOTS BEING FIRED IN THE AREA.Init St:

202500902 S WADESBORO BLVD \ W
HAYWOOD LN

TRAFFIC STOP01/12/2025
19:27:54

CITATION(S) ISSUED

Units:

Notes:

702 Init St:

202500983 6023 PLEASANT VALLEY RD, MT
GILEAD

DOMESTIC01/13/2025
18:45:22

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

703 ARGUMENT ..  SEVERAL  SUBJS YELLINGInit St:

UNK WEAPONS
RATKINSON 01/13/2025 18:46:34  E,F,L,R,O

202500990 ROVER SHOP | 510 JULIUS
CHAMBERS AVE, MT GILEAD

VANDALISM01/13/2025
19:55:38

REPORT TAKEN

Units:

Notes:

703 REF TO VANDALISM TO YARD..Init St:

202501111 107 CIRCLE DR, MT GILEAD ASSIST MOTORIST01/15/2025
13:45:39

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

705 10-36 SIGNAL 1. SILVER 2014 ACURA.Init St:

202501117 SUNRISE TO SUNSET DAYCARE |
273 WASHINGTON PARK RD, MT
GILEAD

ESCORT01/15/2025
14:39:23

MESSAGE DELIVERED

CFS # Date/Time Location Call Type Disposition

Page Of5 13CAD Report 7 01/31/2025 08:42



SUNRISE TO SUNSET DAYCARE |
273 WASHINGTON PARK RD, MT
GILEAD

01/15/2025
14:39:23

Units:

Notes:

705 REQ A ESCORT TO PICKUP BELONGINGS.Init St:

SENT CALLER'S NAME AND NUMBER TO 705'S PUBLIC SERVICE.
BSALAZAR 01/15/2025 14:39:56  E,F,L,R,O

202501124 LIGHTHOUSE CHURCH RD \
POLLARD DR

TRAFFIC STOP01/15/2025
15:43:43

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

702 Init St:

202501149 102 W SECOND AVE, MT GILEAD SUSPICIOUS
PERSON/VEH/ACTIVITY

01/15/2025
21:34:15

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

702 JUST RIDE THRUInit St:

202501156 102 W SECOND AVE, MT GILEAD SUSPICIOUS
PERSON/VEH/ACTIVITY

01/16/2025
01:57:53

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

702 WALKING ON HER PORCHInit St:

202501172 RICHARDSON RD \ HYDRO RD MUTUAL AID - ASSIST OUTSIDE
AGENCY

01/16/2025
07:42:05

REPORT TAKEN

Units:

Notes:

705 deet hit and still aliveInit St:

202501195 PRIDE PLUMBING | 205 N MAIN ST,
MT GILEAD

PROPERTY (Found-Lost-Seized-
Recoverd)

01/16/2025
12:41:48

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

705 COMPANY IS TRYING TO WITHHELD TOOLS AFTER
CALLER QUIT.

Init St:

202501208 174 MASKE RD, MT GILEAD COMMUNICATING THREATS01/16/2025
15:11:58

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

705 23 Y/O BROTHER BRADLEY DUNN HAS MENTALLY
ABUSED MOTHER. SUBJ IS ON SCENE.

Init St:

202501214 289 THOMASVILLE CHURCH RD,
MT GILEAD

SHOTS FIRED01/16/2025
16:23:51

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

705 kalaya watkins no veh in area wearing blk pants with red on it
white shirt toward the church

Init St:

f adv he was threatening her last week
TKAUFMAN 01/16/2025 16:27:13  E,F,L,R,O

202501232 S WADESBORO BLVD \ W
ALLENTON ST

TRAFFIC STOP01/16/2025
21:29:45

CITATION(S) ISSUED

Units:

Notes:

702 Init St:

202501255 MCRAE INDUSTRIES INC | 400 N
MAIN ST, MT GILEAD

ALARM (NOT FIRE)
COMMERCIAL

01/17/2025
07:22:49

FALSE ALARM

Units:

Notes:

704 perm burg zone 7,Init St:

alarm co adv 10-22
HMATTHEWS 01/17/2025 07:25:43  E,F,L,R,O

202501271 527 PARKERTOWN RD, MT GILEAD SERVE PAPER01/17/2025
11:16:05

CLEAR-10-24

Units: 704 Init St:

CFS # Date/Time Location Call Type Disposition

Page Of6 13CAD Report 7 01/31/2025 08:42



Notes:

202501322 125 WASHINGTON PARK RD, MT
GILEAD

DOMESTIC01/17/2025
21:53:02

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

703 SUBJS ARGUING  AT THE RESD...  UNK WEAPONS OR
ALCOHOL..

Init St:

703 ADV VERBAL ARUGMENT BETWEEN SON AND MOTHER. SON ADMITTED TO SLAPPING MOTHER A FEW TIMES, BUT
PER LEO NO MARKS WERE LEFT ON BODY. MOM DID NOT WANT TO TALK TO LEO

SSIMPSON 01/17/2025 22:03:50  E,F,L,R,O

202501328 125 WASHINGTON PARK RD, MT
GILEAD

DOMESTIC01/18/2025
00:11:02

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

703 CALLER ADV BROTHER DERRICK PUSHED HER MOTHER..
MALE IS 10-56 .. NO WEAPONS

Init St:

620
SSIMPSON 01/18/2025 00:16:35  E,F,L,R,O

DISREGARD LAST NOTE
SSIMPSON 01/18/2025 00:16:46  E,F,L,R,O

703 REQ EMS RESPOND TO SAME FOR 60 YO FM THAT FELL AND INJURED HER BACK, AND POSSIBLY HEAD
SSIMPSON 01/18/2025 00:17:12  E,F,L,R,O

703 REQ DEPUTY TO RESPOND AS WELL
SSIMPSON 01/18/2025 00:35:04  E,F,L,R,O

703 ADV  DROPPED SUBJ OFF AT WORK AT BURGER SHACK
RATKINSON 01/18/2025 01:29:17  E,F,L,R,O

CLEAR-10-24 - SUBJ  RELEASED  PER 703
RATKINSON 01/18/2025 01:30:18  E,F,L,R,O

202501391 300 S CEDAR ST, MT GILEAD CIVIL DISTURBANCE01/18/2025
22:38:51

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

703 4 MALES ARE ARGUING AT CORNERInit St:

202501417 WILDERS GROCERY | 310 N MAIN
ST, MT GILEAD

SUSPICIOUS
PERSON/VEH/ACTIVITY

01/19/2025
12:52:48

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

704 BM ALL BLACK CLOTHING, HAS A LIQUOR BOTTLE,
THREATEN TO HIT A FM WITH THE BOTTLE, TRYING TO
GET MONEY FROM CUSTOMERS

Init St:

202501517 CHIPS | 302 JULIUS CHAMBERS
AVE, MT GILEAD

ESCORT01/20/2025
22:27:37

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

702 EMPLOYEE IS REQ 10-59, & THERE IS A VEH PARKED AT
THE GAS PUMPS JUST SITTING THERE NOT GETTING GAS

Init St:

202501527 102 W SECOND AVE, MT GILEAD SUSPICIOUS
PERSON/VEH/ACTIVITY

01/21/2025
03:04:43

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

702 JUST RIDE THRUInit St:

202501565 167 MASKE RD, MT GILEAD ALARM (NOT FIRE) RESIDENTIAL01/21/2025
11:31:36

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

705 burg alarm garage left entry, front door, and living room motion
winfield baumann 704-984-3572 no contact
op #29818

Init St:

CLEAR-10-24 - alarm set off by homeowner
SSIMPSON 01/21/2025 11:39:00  E,F,L,R,O

202501594 BURGER SHACK | 100 S
WADESBORO BLVD, MT GILEAD

INFORMATION01/21/2025
18:25:14

MESSAGE DELIVERED

CFS # Date/Time Location Call Type Disposition

Page Of7 13CAD Report 7 01/31/2025 08:42



Units:

Notes:

702 wants of to call or come by, adv she has a question about a
person, is not 10-18

Init St:

202501608 PARK-MT GILEAD-STANBACK
PARK-POOL | 205 E ALLENTON ST,
MT GILEAD

INFORMATION01/21/2025
21:08:23

UNABLE TO LOCATE-
CONTACT-AREA
CHECKED

Units:

Notes:

701 SEARCHING PARK FOR MISSING PERSON FROM GROUP
HOME OR REST HOME, NO OTHER INFO GIVEN

Init St:

202501620 THE GILEAD | 110 ROOSEVELT AVE,
MT GILEAD

MISSING/LOST PERSON01/21/2025
23:03:23

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

702 Init St:

072800007A.NC2K.EMO.20250121230759.
  TO: MMC     -1360724 20250121 23:07:59   0006648192
FROM: NC2K            20250121 23:07:57
1L012A6D03572C3EMO
NC0620400
NAM/HARRAH,GLENN DANA NIC/M368213863
OCA/0125006

JWHITAKER 01/21/2025 23:06:34  E,F,L,R,O

202501653 MT GILEAD PD | 123 N MAIN ST, MT
GILEAD

INFORMATION01/22/2025
12:49:15

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

704 wants to speak with officer about his missing fatherInit St:

sent name & number to 704s phone for him to call the son back
JGREENE 01/22/2025 12:50:58  E,F,L,R,O

202501728 524 PARKERTOWN RD, MT GILEAD FIGHT01/23/2025
13:52:21

WARRANTS ADVISED

Units:

Notes:

705 needs police craig is fighting someone and there isn't any
weapons

Init St:

202501731 PARKERTOWN RD \ WASHINGTON
PARK RD

TRAFFIC STOP01/23/2025
13:57:43

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

701 Init St:

202501772 102 W SECOND AVE, MT GILEAD PROWLER01/23/2025
23:16:51

DID NOT RESPOND

Units:

Notes:

703 Init St:

202501774 102 W SECOND AVE, MT GILEAD PROWLER01/24/2025
01:06:27

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

703 SOMEONE BY THE WINDOWInit St:

202501776 102 W SECOND AVE, MT GILEAD PROWLER01/24/2025
04:00:33

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

703 SUBJS HITTING WINDOWInit St:

202501789 NC HWY 109 S \ DEATON RD TRAFFIC STOP01/24/2025
10:44:09

ARREST(s)

Units:

Notes:

705 29472628 green chevyInit St:

CFS # Date/Time Location Call Type Disposition

Page Of8 13CAD Report 7 01/31/2025 08:42



202501791 322 W ALLENTON ST, MT GILEAD ASSIST MOTORIST01/24/2025
11:15:20

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

705 Init St:

202501863 4324 NC HWY 109 S, MT GILEAD ELECTROCUTION - LIGHTNING01/25/2025
10:26:58

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

705 shocked and ran over by tractorInit St:

18-year-old, Male, Not Conscious, Breathing.
TKAUFMAN 01/25/2025 10:27:21  E

18-year-old, Male, Not Conscious, Breathing.
Chief Complaint: Electrocution / Lightning
Dispatch Level: 15D02
Suffix: E
Response: Delta
CADCode: 15D02E

TKAUFMAN 01/25/2025 10:27:23  E

18-year-old, Male, Not Conscious, Breathing.
TKAUFMAN 01/25/2025 10:28:04  E

CHECKING AIR CARE
HMATTHEWS 01/25/2025 10:31:15  E,F,L,R,O

cpr in progress
TKAUFMAN 01/25/2025 10:38:16  E,F,L,R,O

per 705
TKAUFMAN 01/25/2025 10:38:25  E,F,L,R,O

aircraft lifted 15 min eta
TKAUFMAN 01/25/2025 10:40:54  E,F,L,R,O

c21 is going to have command on lz west
TKAUFMAN 01/25/2025 10:41:16  E,F,L,R,O

c26 on scene
TKAUFMAN 01/25/2025 10:42:28  E,F,L,R,O

372 ON SCENE @ 10:46:01
HMATTHEWS 01/25/2025 11:06:25  E,F,L,R,O

e218 back at base
TKAUFMAN 01/25/2025 11:29:24  E,F,L,R,O

SPOKE FRED JOHNSON WITH FROM DUKE ENERGY
HMATTHEWS 01/25/2025 16:30:54  E,F,L,R,O

202501950 CHIPS | 302 JULIUS CHAMBERS
AVE, MT GILEAD

STRUCTURE FIRE01/26/2025
14:46:22

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

705 FIRE IN BACK, SMOKE.Init St:

705 adv nothing showing from outside
TKAUFMAN 01/26/2025 14:48:30  E,F,L,R,O

705 ADV FD ROUTINE, BUILDING SMOKE ELECTRICAL.
HMATTHEWS 01/26/2025 14:49:58  E,F,L,R,O

C27 ADV 10-22 STA 6
HMATTHEWS 01/26/2025 14:51:34  E,F,L,R,O

202501980 102 W SECOND AVE, MT GILEAD PROWLER01/27/2025
02:10:13

DID NOT RESPOND

Units:

Notes:

702 ADV SOMEONE ON THE PORCHInit St:

202502044 211 N MAIN ST, MT GILEAD ALARM (NOT FIRE)
COMMERCIAL

01/27/2025
21:24:10

CLEAR-10-24

CFS # Date/Time Location Call Type Disposition

Page Of9 13CAD Report 7 01/31/2025 08:42



Units:

Notes:

703 IN APP VERIFIED BURG ALARM FRONT DOOR
R&R VAPE 910-585-1952, UNABLE TO CONTACT WITH
KEYHOLDER
OP # 7022

Init St:

CLEAR-10-24 - JUST THE OWNER
SSIMPSON 01/27/2025 21:28:05  E,F,L,R,O

202502064 104 W SECOND AVE, MT GILEAD SUSPICIOUS
PERSON/VEH/ACTIVITY

01/28/2025
03:26:00

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

703 SOMEONE ON PORCHInit St:

202502069 3232 NC HWY 73 W, MT GILEAD DOMESTIC01/28/2025
04:52:46

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

703 DOMESTIC.. CLR ADV NO WEAPONSInit St:

202502085 331 NORTHVIEW RD, MT GILEAD ATTEMPT TO LOCATE01/28/2025
10:14:28

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

704 ADDISON LENNON 5/20/2009, B F. SAME IS MISSING
PERSON.

Init St:

MICHAEL OR MIKE ROSA AT JORDAN LUMBER
HMATTHEWS 01/28/2025 10:14:28  E,F,L,R,O

202502089 2500 NC HWY 109 S, MT GILEAD ATTEMPT TO LOCATE01/28/2025
10:54:44

UNABLE TO LOCATE-
CONTACT-AREA
CHECKED

Units:

Notes:

701 MISSING JUVInit St:

202502094 331 NORTHVIEW RD, MT GILEAD FOLLOWUP INVESTIGATION01/28/2025
12:15:58

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

704 Init St:

202502108 336 NORTHVIEW RD, MT GILEAD ATTEMPT TO LOCATE01/28/2025
15:43:29

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

704, 706 Init St:

202502112 331 NORTHVIEW RD, MT GILEAD INMATE-JUV-TX-ESCORT01/28/2025
16:32:33

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

701 1 JUV, 10-17 TO SWIFT ISLAND BPInit St:

159960
HMATTHEWS 01/28/2025 16:32:33  E,F,L,R,O

159967
HMATTHEWS 01/28/2025 16:47:52  E,F,L,R,O

@ BOAT LANDING
HMATTHEWS 01/28/2025 16:47:59  E,F,L,R,O

CASUALS IS GRANDMOTHER TAKING CHILD
HMATTHEWS 01/28/2025 16:57:38  E,F,L,R,O

072F00006B.SWITCH.ACK.20250128171314.
      MMC-219110 20250128 17:13:14 [ 2A6D0357E6 ]  ACK

HMATTHEWS 01/28/2025 17:11:57  E,F,L,R,O

UNKNOWN.NLETS.YR.20250128171533.
  TO: MMC     -1362175 20250128 17:15:33   438097E300
FROM: NLETS           20250128 17:15:33
YR.NC0040100.
    15:13 01/28/2025 37849
    15:13 01/28/2025 17832
    NC062013N.*23B5033DCD.TXT

**** HIT CONFIRMATION RESPONSE ****
THE RECORD BELOW:IS CONFIRMED
OCA/2025-00833.NIC/M838264599.
*** MISSING PERSON ***
NAM/LENNON,ADDISON.DOB/2009-05-20.
HIT IS CONFIRMED PLEASE SEND LOCATE
NAME OF CONFIRMER: S HORNE
CONFIRMING AGENCY: WADESBORO POLICE

HMATTHEWS 01/28/2025 17:15:51  E,F,L,R,O

CFS # Date/Time Location Call Type Disposition

Page Of10 13CAD Report 7 01/31/2025 08:42



UNKNOWN.NLETS.YR.20250128171533.
  TO: MMC     -1362175 20250128 17:15:33   438097E300
FROM: NLETS           20250128 17:15:33
YR.NC0040100.
    15:13 01/28/2025 37849
    15:13 01/28/2025 17832
    NC062013N.*23B5033DCD.TXT

**** HIT CONFIRMATION RESPONSE ****
THE RECORD BELOW:IS CONFIRMED
OCA/2025-00833.NIC/M838264599.
*** MISSING PERSON ***
NAM/LENNON,ADDISON.DOB/2009-05-20.
HIT IS CONFIRMED PLEASE SEND LOCATE
NAME OF CONFIRMER: S HORNE
CONFIRMING AGENCY: WADESBORO POLICE

072F000083.NC2K.LM.20250128172534.
  TO: MMC     -1362206 20250128 17:25:34   00066E8CCF
FROM: NC2K            20250128 17:25:33
1L012A6D0357F54LM
NC062013N
REJECT - NOT ON FILE
1N012A6D0357F54LM  .LM.NC062013N.NIC/M838264599.0CA/2025-00833.20

HMATTHEWS 01/28/2025 17:23:59  E,F,L,R,O

202502133 213 BLACKWELL ST, MT GILEAD WANTED PERSON01/28/2025
21:05:26

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

703 JACOB JOHNSON 9/11/2001Init St:

Jacob Erin Johnson
09/11/2001
41515335 NC
25CR219905-830
North Carolina Warrant for Arrest
STANLY
ASSAULT ON A FEMALE
VR
FCR
DV
DV-H
Unserved

RATKINSON 01/28/2025 21:05:47  E,F,L,R,O

STANLY DEP ADV TO HANDLE
RATKINSON 01/28/2025 21:39:03  E,F,L,R,O

MAG NOTIFIED
RATKINSON 01/28/2025 21:39:27  E,F,L,R,O

202502148 102 W SECOND AVE, MT GILEAD SUSPICIOUS
PERSON/VEH/ACTIVITY

01/29/2025
00:58:36

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

703 Init St:

202502153 140 GREY FOX LN, MT GILEAD ARMED PERSON01/29/2025
02:15:06

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

703 MALE SUBJ WITH A GUNInit St:

DONITA SULLIVAN
RATKINSON 01/29/2025 02:15:06  E,F,L,R,O

MALE IS ALEX LANCE
CALLER IS TRINITY DOLLINS

RATKINSON 01/29/2025 02:16:46  E,F,L,R,O

MALE IS 10-56
RATKINSON 01/29/2025 02:16:57  E,F,L,R,O

MALE SUBJ WAS HOLDING THE GUN TO HIS HEAD
RATKINSON 01/29/2025 02:17:45  E,F,L,R,O

MALE SUBJ IS IN THE LIVING ROOM WITH HIS FATHER
RATKINSON 01/29/2025 02:18:41  E,F,L,R,O

CFS # Date/Time Location Call Type Disposition

Page Of11 13CAD Report 7 01/31/2025 08:42



CALLER IS UNABLE ADV IF SUBJ STILL HAS THE WEAPON
RATKINSON 01/29/2025 02:20:26  E,F,L,R,O

ALEX LSW  JEANS  AND A RED NIKE COAT..
RATKINSON 01/29/2025 02:22:12  E,F,L,R,O

TC HENLEY MADE CONTACT WITH JACKIE LANCE AT 7046181903
RATKINSON 01/29/2025 02:31:40  E,F,L,R,O

HOLD CHANNEL
RATKINSON 01/29/2025 02:33:33  E,F,L,R,O

112 ADV NO CONTACT AT RESD
RATKINSON 01/29/2025 02:41:01  E,F,L,R,O

JACKIE LANCE ADV  ALEXANDER HAS LET EVERY ONE LEAVE THE RESD AND ALEXANDER IS ALONE IN THE RESD AT THIS
TIME..

RATKINSON 01/29/2025 02:43:31  E,F,L,R,O

110 ADV RELEASE CHANNEL AT THIS TIME
RATKINSON 01/29/2025 03:49:18  E,F,L,R,O

110 ADV  UNITS WERE 10-4
RATKINSON 01/29/2025 03:54:12  E,F,L,R,O

110  ADV  WEAPON SECURED
RATKINSON 01/29/2025 04:13:31  E,F,L,R,O

MAG NOTIFIED
RATKINSON 01/29/2025 04:17:39  E,F,L,R,O

112 ADV TO NOT MAG & HAVE MAG TO 10-21
JHENLEY 01/29/2025 04:32:45  E,F,L,R,O

202502197 PARK-MT GILEAD-STANBACK
PARK-POOL | 205 E ALLENTON ST,
MT GILEAD

DOMESTIC01/29/2025
14:46:10

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

705 FORD FOCUS AND MALE & FEMALE ARE ARGUING  WHITE
IN COLOR AND WHITE FEMALE DRIVING

Init St:

202502205 HIGHLAND COMMUNITY CENTER |
131 HOFFMAN DR, MT GILEAD

SPECIAL ASSIGNMENT01/29/2025
16:21:52

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

705 Init St:

202502222 W ALLENTON ST \ N MAIN ST TRAFFIC ACCIDENTS (PD)01/29/2025
18:08:22

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

702 blk jeep and burgandy pc, no injInit St:

202502233 W ALLENTON ST \ MASKE RD TRAFFIC STOP01/29/2025
20:44:26

CITATION(S) ISSUED

Units:

Notes:

702 Init St:

202502254 NC HWY 109 S \ MASK RD VEHICLE FIRE01/30/2025
00:25:02

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

702 tk on fire, nobody aroundInit St:

fire under control
JWHITAKER 01/30/2025 00:40:10  E,F,L,R,O

132 ADV NEXT ROTATION
JHENLEY 01/30/2025 01:11:48  E,F,L,R,O

SVP IS ENROUTE
JHENLEY 01/30/2025 01:11:53  E,F,L,R,O

CFS # Date/Time Location Call Type Disposition

Page Of12 13CAD Report 7 01/31/2025 08:42



202502317 181 FOREST HILL VILLAGE RD, MT
GILEAD

INFORMATION01/30/2025
15:23:17

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

705 REQ TO SPEAK WITH AN OFFICER REF UNAUTH USE OF
VEH THAT OCC IN DEC.

Init St:

202502318 THE GILEAD | 110 ROOSEVELT AVE,
MT GILEAD

CHEST PAIN01/30/2025
15:24:21

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

705 911 only standing outside at gazebo adv nobody is at the facilityInit St:

chest pain and pain on left side
TKAUFMAN 01/30/2025 15:24:21  E,F,L,R,O

68-year-old, Male, Conscious, Breathing.
TKAUFMAN 01/30/2025 15:24:35  E

68-year-old, Male, Conscious, Breathing.
Chief Complaint: Chest Pain / Chest Discomfort (Non-Traumatic)
Dispatch Level: 10D04
Response: Delta
CADCode: 10D04

TKAUFMAN 01/30/2025 15:25:04  E

68-year-old, Male, Conscious, Breathing.
TKAUFMAN 01/30/2025 15:25:32  E

202502342 NC HWY 73 W, MT GILEAD TRAFFIC STOP01/30/2025
20:02:24

CLEAR-10-24

Units:

Notes:

702 Init St:

washington park
JWHITAKER 01/30/2025 20:02:57  E,F,L,R,O

blk honda accord, speed 45mp, 4 ways on
JWHITAKER 01/30/2025 20:03:23  E,F,L,R,O

bridge at pleasant valley
JWHITAKER 01/30/2025 20:03:40  E,F,L,R,O

passing carolina on pleasant valley
JWHITAKER 01/30/2025 20:03:58  E,F,L,R,O

dirt portion
JWHITAKER 01/30/2025 20:04:19  E,F,L,R,O

132 adv subj will jump and run
JWHITAKER 01/30/2025 20:04:46  E,F,L,R,O

132 adv ditched car and ran
JWHITAKER 01/30/2025 20:05:57  E,F,L,R,O

702 adv they were told subj ran into tl at 6018 pleasant valley
JWHITAKER 01/30/2025 20:07:11  E,F,L,R,O

702 adv given consent to search tl, no extra occupant in there
JWHITAKER 01/30/2025 20:09:51  E,F,L,R,O

Total: 93

CFS # Date/Time Location Call Type Disposition

Page Of13 13CAD Report 7 01/31/2025 08:42



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

                TOWN OF MOUNT GILEAD 
 

110 West Allenton Street, Mount Gilead, North Carolina, 27306 
 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Meeting Date: 2/4/2025 Agenda Item Number: III 

Submitted By: Michael Ferris Department: Administration 

Attachments: Public Comments 

Topic: Reading of Rules for Public Comment 

 

Staff Summary: It is the practice of the Town Board that the Rules for Public Comment be read aloud 

prior to the opening of the Public Comment period. 

 

Direct Cost:  Line Item Utilized:   

Amount Remaining after Action:  In Current Budget:  

Plans if Not in Current Budget:  

 

Staff Recommendation:  

 

 

Examples of Motions: 

 

 

 



TOWN OF MOUNT GILEAD 
Post Office Box 325 

110 West Allenton Street 

Mount Gilead, North Carolina 27306 

Incorporated 1899 

Phone (910) 439-5111 – Fax (910) 439-1336 
 

Commissioners 

Vera Richardson 

Paula Covington 

Mary Lucas 

 

 

 

 

Rules for Public Comment 

 
 

Meeting of the Town Board of Mount Gilead always include a Public Comment period. The purpose of 

this time is for members of the community and the general public to make their views known directly to 

the Town Board. To ensure a fair proceeding for all who wish to speak, please be aware of the following 

rules that were unanimously adopted in December 2016,that will be observed during all public meetings: 

 

 

1.   All persons wishing to speak shall do so from the podium to ensure an accurate record of 

testimony. Each person requesting to speak shall do so by signing their name, phone number on 

the Public Comment sign up sheet and must provide a phone number, address, and/or email 

address in order No one is permitted to speak from the audience or interact and/or question the 

person speaking. This is a public comment session and not a public debate. Open Meetings laws 

for the State of North Carolina, section 197, pg. 87., and section 239, pg. 105, agree that a 

Mayor nor the Board of Commissioners are allowed to respond to public comment or debate 

with a citizen during this time. If a response is necessary, a separate meeting can be called to 

discuss the issue at hand or if the answer is readily available it will be answered during 

Department Reports by the Town Manager.  

2.   Each person who has signed up to speak shall have one opportunity to speak for a period not to 

exceed 3 minutes in duration. The speaker will not be permitted to speak again once they leave 

the podium, or their 3 minutes expire. 

3.  The Board requests that a group be represented by a spokesperson in order to keep repetitive 

testimony at a minimum. If this spokesperson is representing a group of more than 5 citizens, 

he/she is afforded the opportunity to speak for a period not to exceed 5 minutes. 

4.  Town staff will note all comments and provide answers directly to citizens or make information 

available town-wide during department reports or at the next meeting. 

5.  Inflammatory or immaterial testimony will not be allowed. 

6.  In addition to the comment period during the public meeting, individuals can provide written 

comments to the Town Board of Commissioners by submitting them in writing to the Town 

Clerk. This can be addressed by email to clerk@mtgileadnc.com or via USPS at PO Box 325, 

Mt. Gilead, NC 27306. 

Mayor 

Sheldon Morley 

 

Mayor Pro Tem 

Tim McAuley 

 

Town Manager 

Dylan Haman 

 

Town Clerk 

Lessie Jackson 

mailto:clerk@mtgileadnc.com


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

                TOWN OF MOUNT GILEAD 
 

110 West Allenton Street, Mount Gilead, North Carolina, 27306 
 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Meeting Date: 2/4/2025 Agenda Item Number:     IV.A. 

Submitted By: Michael Ferris Department: Administration 

Attachments: Budget Amendment Ordinance 

Topic: To Amend the FY 2024/2025 Budget in the Fire Department. 

 

 

Staff Summary: The attached Budget Amendment funds the approval given by the Town Board at the 

January 21 meeting to proceed with the water service line replacement and improvements at the Fire 

Station.  The Budget Ordinance moves $30,000 from General Fund Balance (reserves) into the Fire 

Department Budget in the current fiscal year.   

 

 

Direct Cost: $30,000 Line Item Utilized: See Budget Ordinance for 

impacted line items 

Amount Remaining after Action:  In Current Budget:  

Plans if Not in Current Budget: Perform Budget Amendment 

 

Staff Recommendation: Approve to authorize the movement of the needed funds to support the project. 

 

 

Examples of Motions: 

 

Approve – I move to approve the proposed Budget Amendment to fund the Fire Department water 

service line project. 

 

Deny – I move to deny the proposed Budget Amendment to fund the Fire Department water service line 

project.  (Note – If this motion is passed, the project will not occur and we will proceed with repairs only 

in the current fiscal year). 

 

 

 



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE TOWN OF MOUNT GILEAD  

BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 

 

WHEREAS, The Town of Mount Gilead has the authority pursuant to Article 15 of Chapter 159 

of the North Carolina General Statutes; and 

WHEREAS, section 159-28 of the North Carolina General Statutes Specifically Requires 

Available Funds prior to incurring obligations; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of 

Mount Gilead, that the following amendments be made to the annual budget ordinance for the 

fiscal year ending June 30, 2025. 

Section 1: To amend the General Fund, the following appropriations are to be amended 

as follows: 

DEPARTMENT FROM TO 

Fire Department $140,200 $170,200 

 

This will result in a net increase of $30,000 in the General Fund to the Contracted Services (10-

600-42) account of the Fire Department.  

Section 2: To amend the General Fund, the estimated revenues are to be amended as 

follows: 

REVENUE ACCOUNT FROM TO 

10-360-10 Appropriated Fund 

Balance 

$158,929 $188,929 

 

Section 3: Reason – For Fire Department Water Service Line Replacement. 

 

Section 4: Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the 

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and Finance Officer for their direction. 

 

Adopted this 4th day of February, 2025 by the Town of Mount Gilead City Council. 

 

______________________      ______________________  

 MAYOR                 TOWN CLERK 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

                TOWN OF MOUNT GILEAD 
 

110 West Allenton Street, Mount Gilead, North Carolina, 27306 
 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Meeting Date: 2/4/2025 Agenda Item Number:      IV. B. 

Submitted By: Michael Ferris Department: Administration 

Attachments: Audit Response Letter 

Topic: Approval of Audit Response Letter 

 

Staff Summary: The Town Board was presented with and approved the Town of Mount Gilead Audit 

for FY 2023/2024 at its January 21 meeting.  Among the items review by the Town’s Auditor Deneal 

Bennett, J.B. Watson & Company, was the Financial Performance Indicators Report.  Ms. Bennett noted 

2 items require a written response to the NC Local Government Commission.  Based on the written report 

from Ms. Bennett and the input of Town staff, I have drafted the proposed response for your review and 

consideration. I do want to note that Ms.  Bennett has reviewed the response and her comments are 

incorporated into the draft for your consideration  

 

It is also worth pointing out that during the audit presentation, Ms. Bennett noted on multiple occasions 

the improved status of the Town’s financial position as well as compliance.  This is a good indicator of 

the seriousness with which the Mayor, Commissioners, and current and former employees of the Town 

have taken these issues.  I have always taken the position that a thorough and comprehensive audit is part 

of a continuous improvement process and why her comments regarding the Town’s progress are 

extremely encouraging and something for the Town to be proud of. 

 

 

Direct Cost:  Line Item Utilized:   

Amount Remaining after Action:  In Current Budget:  

Plans if Not in Current Budget:  

 

Staff Recommendation:   Approve and sign the Audit Response Letter 

 

 

Examples of Motions: 

 

Approve:  I move to approve the Audit Response Letter and for submission to the NC Local Government 

Commission. 

 

Note – Submission of a letter is mandatory.  Therefore, if the letter requires any changes, those need to be 

noted so submission is not delayed. 

 

 

 



TOWN OF MOUNT GILEAD 
Post Office Box 325 

110 West Allenton Street 

Mount Gilead, North Carolina 27306 

Incorporated 1899 

Phone (910) 439-5111 – Fax (910) 439-1336 
 

Commissioners 

Paula Covington 

Vera Richardson 

Mary Lucas 

 

 

Indicator of Concern Town Response 
 

There was appropriated fund balance 

for the General Fund in the FY 23/24 

budget and your change in fund 

balance was negative.   Please state if 

the fund balance was used for capital 

purposes. 

The change in the General Fund Fund 

Balance was created by an error by a prior 

employee who incorrectly submitted federal 

payroll taxes to the IRS rather than the NC 

Department of Revenue.  This occurred over 

an extended period and payments made in 

error to the NCDOR totaled $371,641. The 

Town was able to receive a full refund of the 

principal amount paid in error, plus $24,382 

in interest.  The Town was not able to receive 

a waiver of penalties applied by the IRS.  In 

FY 23/24 the Town submitted to the IRS the 

original amount of $371,641 in addition to 

accrued interest and penalties of $114,456.  

The Town is now enrolled in the Electronic 

Federal Tax Payment System (EFTPS) for 

improved processing of payroll taxes. 

 

 

 

Are there additional indicators the unit 

should address that affect the fiscal 

health or internal controls of the unit 

that were communicated to the unit 

during the audit presentation? 

Operating Loss in Water and Sewer Fund 

– The Town has incurred an operating loss in 

the Water and Sewer Fund for the over a 

decade.  The current Town Board and 

Administration are aware of the issue and 

significance and the Town has taken steps to 

address the issue.  Rates have been increased 

and will continue to be evaluated to address 

the operating loss and ensure the Fund is self-

supporting.  Additionally, matters of 

comprehensive and accurate billing and 

collection issues are noted.  Action has 

already been taken on these issues (noted later 

Mayor 

Sheldon Morley 

 

Mayor Pro Tem 

Tim McAuley 

 

Interim  

Town Manager 

Michael J. Ferris 

 

Town Clerk 

Lessie D. Jackson 

 



in the Town’s response) as the Town believes 

strongly in fair and complete collections for 

debts legally due to the Town of Mount 

Gilead, as it is a significant part of ensuring a 

self-sustaining Water & Sewer System and 

Fund. 

 

Utility Billing Issue – The issue of rates not 

being billed or entered at the newly approved 

level were in some instance detected by the 

Town Staff and in others upon audit review.  

All noted billing and rate issues were 

corrected within FY 23/24.  The corrected 

issues have increased revenues to the 

appropriate level and account for 

approximately 43% of the 23/24 operating 

loss in the Water and Sewer Fund.  

 

Management will perform internal audits and 

reviews of utility billing to verify rates are set 

and entered at the correct amounts. 

Additionally, a routine review of YTD 

revenues is currently performed to aid in 

detection of billing and collection issues. 

 

 

 

 

__________________________   __________________________ 

Mayor Sheldon P. Morley    Mayor Pro-Tem Tim McCauley 

 

 

__________________________   __________________________ 

Commissioner Dr. Vera Richardson   Commissioner Paula Covington 

 

 

__________________________   __________________________ 

Commissioner Mary Lucas    Lee Ann Haithcock, Finance Officer 

 

 

__________________________   __________________________ 

Lessie D. Jackson, Town Clerk   Michael J. Ferris, Interim Town Manager 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

                TOWN OF MOUNT GILEAD 
 

110 West Allenton Street, Mount Gilead, North Carolina, 27306 
 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Meeting Date: 2/4/2025 Agenda Item Number:    IV. C. 

Submitted By: Michael Ferris Department: Administration 

Attachments: None 

Topic: Consider Date for Budget Planning Session 

 

 

 

Staff Summary: At the previous meeting, it was noted that we are approaching the time of year when the 

Board typically plans for a Budget and Planning Session.   

 

It appears these typically occur on a Saturday in early March.  If we would like to keep this same general 

timeframe to hold the meeting this year, March 1, 8, and 15 are options.  A start time of 9:00 a.m. is 

suggested for the meeting.      

 

 

Direct Cost:  Line Item Utilized:   

Amount Remaining after Action:  In Current Budget:  

Plans if Not in Current Budget:  

 

Staff Recommendation: Set day and time for Budget Planning Session. 

 

 

Examples of Motions:  I move to set a Budget Planning Session for (date) (time) (location) 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

                TOWN OF MOUNT GILEAD 
 

110 West Allenton Street, Mount Gilead, North Carolina, 27306 
 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Meeting Date: 2/4/2025 Agenda Item Number:     IV. D 

Submitted By: Michael Ferris Department: Administration 

Attachments: Conference Information 

Topic: Consider Attendance at the NC League of Municipalities City Vision Conference 

 

Staff Summary: The NCLM 2025 CityVision Conference will be held this year in Greenville, NC from 

April 29 – May 1.  This is what I would describe as their annual conference. You have previously 

received communication from the Town Clerk regarding this opportunity.  The conference hotel can fill 

quickly as it is typically the closest and most convenient location and there is an early bird registration 

discount.  While we can register anyone interested in attending prior to the registration deadline, it would 

be best to do so as soon as possible for anyone who knows they will attend.  Therefore, we ask that you 

contact the Town Clerk by February 11 if you are interested.  We can still register anyone interested in 

attending after this date, but hotel availability may become more challenging and pricing will increase. 

 

 

 

Direct Cost:  Line Item Utilized:   

Amount Remaining after Action:  In Current Budget:  

Plans if Not in Current Budget:  

 

Staff Recommendation: No recommendations 

 

 

Examples of Motions:  No Board action required 

 

 

 



Registration is Now Open for NCLM's 
CityVision 2025! 

Greenville, NC | April 29 - May 1 

 

CityVision 2025 – NCLM’s flagship annual event – is the year’s best opportunity to gather, 
learn from and network with hundreds of local leaders from around North Carolina. 
 
This year’s conference takes on the emerging issues facing our cities and towns. Expert-led 
sessions will focus on the topics of housing, transportation, economic development and 
municipal workforce, along with a targeted showcase on civility and local leadership, and 
case studies from around North Carolina will provide you with a firsthand look at innovations 
you can implement back at home. You will leave this conference not just with information and 
guidance, but with practical, immediate tools to better your community. 
 
NCLM is also offering this year two of its most sought-after educational courses: ‘Commit to 
Civility,’ which showcases our towns’ governing boards commitment to effective, respectful 
leadership, and provides participating towns with a Certificate to display at town hall; and 
‘Ethics for Municipal Officials,’ which meets the state required ethics training for elected 
officials. 
 
For those pursuing our AML Certifications, up to six credits are available at CityVision 2025!  
 
Early-bird registration ends on Friday, February 14! 

  

  
  

Early-Bird Member (ends 2.14.25) $400 

Pre-Con Only $175 

Standard Member $450 

On-Site Member $700 

Spouse/Guest $150 

Non-member $1,000 

 

https://public-usa.mkt.dynamics.com/api/orgs/0a07daaf-0042-4def-866d-2caaf9e17706/r/UJnNjHGrYk-HVNFqKm_3UwIAAAA?target=%7B%22TargetUrl%22%3A%22https%253A%252F%252Fmembers.nclm.org%252FPortals%252F0%252Fassets%252Fimages%252Fevent%252FAML%2520Certification%2520Program.pdf%253Fver%253DajjTCieqAx1JHIE2aPfSmw%25253d%25253d%22%2C%22RedirectOptions%22%3A%7B%221%22%3Anull%7D%7D&digest=PbZR%2B2W0mgjFLVsWS2vsuYEvQkpWc5AKjYzhD8xC5Cg%3D&secretVersion=a587597bbd2d4ba3bb4334f6d8be15ee


Winter is a time of rest, not just for our volunteer gardeners but for the garden itself. While 

the cold months may seem like a dormant period, there is plenty of activity happening 

beneath the surface. The soil, blanketed in straw and fallen leaves, is alive with unseen 

processes that prepare it for the coming spring. Mycorrhizal fungi, hidden just below the 

surface, work tirelessly to break down organic matter, cleaning and enriching the soil with 

essential nutrients. These symbiotic fungi form networks that help plants absorb nutrients 

more efficiently when growth resumes in warmer months. 

Pollinators, so vital to our ecosystem, are also resting. Dead plant stems, fallen leaves, and 

mulch that many see as garden debris serve as protective habitats for bees, butterflies, and 

other beneficial insects. These creatures find refuge from the cold, waiting for the first signs 

of spring to emerge and continue their crucial work in the garden. Understanding and 

respecting this seasonal cycle helps us appreciate the garden as a dynamic ecosystem, not 

just a place for growing food and flowers. 

The educational value of a winter garden is immense. It teaches patience, respect for natural 

processes, and the importance of allowing time for renewal. As we await the arrival of 

spring, we can take time to plan, reflect, and prepare for the next growing season. Thanks to 

generous donors like Dianna Lariviere, our community garden will be stocked with heirloom 

seeds from Baker Creek, ensuring a diverse and resilient crop. We are also reaching out to 

Burpee, who generously contributed seeds two years ago and may support our efforts again 

this season. Native flowers remain a priority, as they provide essential nectar and habitat for 

pollinators. Last summer, Tammy Privet donated a selection of native flower seeds, and 

these will soon be sown to give them the best possible start in our garden. 

Encouraging pollinators and insect predators remains one of our key organic gardening 

goals. By fostering a diverse insect population, we can naturally manage pests without 

relying on synthetic chemicals. Winter rest is vital for that mission. While we strive to 

maintain organic practices, we do make an exception for fire ants, a persistent and invasive 

species that poses a challenge to both gardeners and beneficial insects. 

Winter reminds us that rest is essential. Just as the soil, insects, and fungi pause to 

regenerate, so too should we take this time to recharge and prepare for the growing season 

ahead. When the first green shoots emerge and pollinators stir from their winter shelters, we 

will be ready to nurture a thriving, sustainable garden once more. 

 



MTD

10 GENERAL FUND

Description Budget Encumbrance YTD Variance Percent

Revenues

1,668,510 908,036.35 (760,473.65) 54%0.000.00

Revenues 1,668,510Totals: 0.00 0.00 908,036.35 (760,473.65) 54%

Expenses

229,150 153,621.35 74,518.39 67%0.001,010.26ADMINISTRATION

200,050 101,447.94 96,227.63 52%0.002,374.43STREETS AND GROUNDS

48,000 14,919.04 33,080.96 31%0.000.00PLANNING & ZONING

115,000 62,838.67 52,161.33 55%0.000.00SOLID WASTE

26,000 12,426.70 5,044.85 81%0.008,528.45

107,250 70,700.70 36,549.30 66%0.000.00PARKS AND RECREATION

631,333 339,366.24 278,178.13 56%0.0013,788.63POLICE DEPARTMENT

140,200 61,823.23 55,198.57 61%0.0023,178.20FIRE DEPARTMENT

30,750 3,812.18 26,937.82 12%0.000.00REDEVELOPMENT CORP.

0 0.00 0.000.000.00FITNESS CENTER

50,000 10,800.00 39,200.00 22%0.000.00POWELL BILL

0 0.00 0.000.000.00HIGHLAND COMM. CT.GRANT

5,000 1,006.30 3,993.70 20%0.000.00CEMETERY

61,877 30,865.84 30,461.16 51%0.00550.00GOVERNING BODY

11,400 6,246.79 (1,696.79) 115%0.006,850.00LIBRARY

12,500 0.00 12,500.000.000.00DEBT SERVICE

0 0.00 0.000.000.00

Expenses 1,668,510Totals: 56,279.97 0.00 869,874.98 742,355.05 56%

38,161.3710 GENERAL FUND Revenues Over/(Under) Expenses: 0.00

Page Of1 2

Budget vs Actual (Summary)

1/31/2025 11:26:49 AM

Town of Mount Gilead

Period Ending 6/30/2025



MTD

20 ENTERPRISE FUND

Description Budget Encumbrance YTD Variance Percent

Revenues

1,611,701 1,070,209.59 (541,491.41) 66%0.000.00

Revenues 1,611,701Totals: 0.00 0.00 1,070,209.59 (541,491.41) 66%

Expenses

286,850 176,232.82 98,740.94 66%0.0011,876.24ADMINISTRATION

353,234 211,050.97 103,665.70 71%0.0038,517.33WATER OPERATIONS

380,300 228,061.79 137,922.53 64%0.0014,315.68WASTE WATER COLLECTION

324,342 135,068.36 141,046.41 57%0.0048,227.23WASTE WATER PLANT

0 0.00 0.000.000.00SOLID WASTE

26,000 10,874.35 6,597.21 75%0.008,528.44

0 0.00 0.000.000.00GOVERNING BODY

0 0.00 0.000.000.00LIBRARY

0 0.00 0.000.000.00

240,975 16,855.72 224,119.28 7%0.000.00DEBT SERVICE

0 0.00 0.000.000.00

Expenses 1,611,701Totals: 121,464.92 0.00 778,144.01 712,092.07 56%

292,065.5820 ENTERPRISE FUND Revenues Over/(Under) Expenses: 0.00

Page Of2 2

Budget vs Actual (Summary)

1/31/2025 11:26:49 AM

Town of Mount Gilead

Period Ending 6/30/2025



87 87-STORMWATER AIA

Description Budget Encumbranc YTD Variance Percent

Revenues

350,000 0.00 95,000.00 (255,000.00) 27%

350,000 0.00 95,000.00 (255,000.00)Revenues Totals: 27%

Expenses

350,000 0.00 95,000.00 255,000.00 27%ADMINISTRATION

350,000 0.00 95,000.00 255,000.00Expenses Totals: 27%

87 87-STORMWATER AIA Totals: 0.00

Page Of1 1

Budget vs Actual (Summary)

1/31/2025 11:23:35 AM

Town of Mount Gilead

Period Ending 6/30/2025



24 24-STANBACK PARK DRAINAGE 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT

Description Budget Encumbranc YTD Variance Percent

Revenues

1,807,000 0.00 138,400.00 (1,668,600.00) 8%

1,807,000 0.00 138,400.00 (1,668,600.00)Revenues Totals: 8%

Expenses

1,807,000 0.00 138,400.00 1,668,600.00 8%ADMINISTRATION

1,807,000 0.00 138,400.00 1,668,600.00Expenses Totals: 8%

24 24-STANBACK PARK
DRAINAGE

IMPROVEMENTS
PROJECT

Totals: 0.00

Page Of1 1

Budget vs Actual (Summary)

1/31/2025 1:45:51 PM

Town of Mount Gilead

Period Ending 6/30/2025



86 86-WASTEWATER AIA GRANT FUND

Description Budget Encumbranc YTD Variance Percent

Revenues

147,000 0.00 152,436.00 5,436.00 104%

147,000 0.00 152,436.00 5,436.00Revenues Totals: 104%

Expenses

147,000 0.00 140,000.00 7,000.00 95%ADMINISTRATION

147,000 0.00 140,000.00 7,000.00Expenses Totals: 95%

86 86-WASTEWATER AIA
GRANT FUND

Totals: 12,436.00

Page Of1 1

Budget vs Actual (Summary)

1/31/2025 1:46:51 PM

Town of Mount Gilead

Period Ending 6/30/2025



85 85-WATER AIA GRANT GUND

Description Budget Encumbranc YTD Variance Percent

Revenues

147,000 0.00 143,386.00 (3,614.00) 98%

147,000 0.00 143,386.00 (3,614.00)Revenues Totals: 98%

Expenses

147,000 0.00 140,000.00 7,000.00 95%ADMINISTRATION

147,000 0.00 140,000.00 7,000.00Expenses Totals: 95%

85 85-WATER AIA GRANT
GUND

Totals: 3,386.00

Page Of1 1

Budget vs Actual (Summary)

1/31/2025 1:47:28 PM

Town of Mount Gilead

Period Ending 6/30/2025



97 97-STRAP

Description Budget Encumbranc YTD Variance Percent

Revenues

85,000 0.00 0.00 (85,000.00)

85,000 0.00 0.00 (85,000.00)Revenues Totals:

Expenses

85,000 0.00 0.00 85,000.00ASSETS

85,000 0.00 0.00 85,000.00Expenses Totals:

97 97-STRAP Totals: 0.00

Page Of1 1

Budget vs Actual (Summary)

1/31/2025 1:47:55 PM

Town of Mount Gilead

Period Ending 6/30/2026



96 96-ALBERT JOHNSON POCKET PARK

Description Budget Encumbranc YTD Variance Percent

Revenues

115,000 0.00 0.00 (115,000.00)

115,000 0.00 0.00 (115,000.00)Revenues Totals:

Expenses

115,000 0.00 0.00 115,000.00ASSETS

115,000 0.00 0.00 115,000.00Expenses Totals:

96 96-ALBERT JOHNSON
POCKET PARK

Totals: 0.00

Page Of1 1

Budget vs Actual (Summary)

1/31/2025 1:48:18 PM

Town of Mount Gilead

Period Ending 6/30/2026



71 71-LILLY'S BRIDGE ROAD FORCE MAIN IMP 
PROJECT

Description Budget Encumbranc YTD Variance Percent

Revenues

7,760,000 0.00 292,527.10 (7,467,472.90) 4%

7,760,000 0.00 292,527.10 (7,467,472.90)Revenues Totals: 4%

Expenses

7,760,000 0.00 326,439.60 7,433,560.40 4%ADMINISTRATION

7,760,000 0.00 326,439.60 7,433,560.40Expenses Totals: 4%

71 71-LILLY'S BRIDGE
ROAD FORCE MAIN IMP

PROJECT

Totals: (33,912.50)

Page Of1 1

Budget vs Actual (Summary)

1/31/2025 1:48:48 PM

Town of Mount Gilead

Period Ending 6/30/2027



90 90-SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM 
IMPROVEMENTS

Description Budget Encumbranc YTD Variance Percent

Revenues

3,500,000 0.00 205,700.00 (3,294,300.00) 6%

3,500,000 0.00 205,700.00 (3,294,300.00)Revenues Totals: 6%

Expenses

3,500,000 0.00 174,371.00 3,325,629.00 5%ADMINISTRATION

3,500,000 0.00 174,371.00 3,325,629.00Expenses Totals: 5%

90 90-SANITARY SEWER
SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

Totals: 31,329.00

Page Of1 1

Budget vs Actual (Summary)

1/31/2025 1:49:14 PM

Town of Mount Gilead

Period Ending 3/31/2033


